
Adopted Minutes
Development Review Committee

May 19, 2004

The meeting was called to order at 10:05 a.m. by Emil Pierson.

Staff Members Present: Emil Pierson, Planning Director; David A. Oyler, City Manager; Richard
Nielson, Assistant Public Works Director; Jeff Foster, Electric Superintendent; Marvin Banks,
Public Works Superintendent; Chris Thompson, Design Engineer; Keith Broadhead, Public
Works Inspector; Travis Anderson, GPS Operator; Dee Rosenbaum, Public Safety Director; S.
Junior Baker, City Attorney; Shawn Beecher, GIS Specialists; and Connie Swain, Deputy
Recorder.

Citizens Present: Ken Fakler, Auto Zone, Karen Fakler, Auto Zone, John D. Smiley, Quail
Hollow, Ernie Thornton, LEI Engineers/Spanish Fields, Kelly Porter, April Porter, Ben Forsky,
and Brook McDonald.

Village at Spanish Fields Final Plat A

Mr. Pierson said Spanish Fields Final Plat A was approved two weeks ago and the applicant is
requesting to approve Village at Spanish Fields as a part of the development to contain model
homes.

Mr. Nielson requested a separate bond for the area containing the model homes, however, there
is no need for separate construction drawings.

Mr. Pierson said he is still waiting for a clear title report.

Mr. Oyler reviewed the location of the property.

Mr. Thompson said the city is delaying the purchases of the Hill and Finch properties until a
clear title report is received.  The property will be purchased for the road easement and the
property lines need to be verified.

Mr. Thornton said he will push for the title report.

Mr. Foster said the electric power will come across the road at 100 South.  There are facilities
such as electric and telecommunications to be installed to service the Village at Spanish Fields
area.  The curb and gutter will need to be installed through a large portion of the area in order to
put in the infrastructure.  He reviewed the electric and telecommunications design.  

Mr. Thornton requested to bring the power to the model home area directly from 100 South.

10:15 a.m. - Dee Rosenbaum arrived.



Mr. Foster said the variation would require a fee for the design change.

Mr. Thornton said he does not understand the need for a redesign.  

Mr. Foster said he will look at the options.

Mr. Oyler clarified the process to resolve the infrastructure issues. 

10:18 a.m.  - Junior Baker arrived.

Mr. Broadhead said all of the improvements need to be in and functional before the plat will be
inspected and approved.

Mr. Foster reviewed the phases of the electrical design and the telecommunication design issues.

Mr. Baker asked if the developer will be required to install all improvements to the
telecommunications node before building permits are issued.

Mr. Thompson said the developer could pay the redesign fee and the telecommunications will not
be available to the model homes area until the improvements are completed.

Mr. Thornton said the model homes will not need telecommunications at this time.

10:20 a.m. - Travis Anderson arrived.

Mr. Pierson said the bonds posted will provide protection to the city.

Mr. Thornton said the first priority will be to install the 100 South improvements.

Mr. Foster has a copy of the costs from Strawberry Electric.

Mr. Pierson made a motion to approve the Village at Spanish Fields Final Plat A with the
following conditions:
1. The electrical design is to be approved by Jeff Foster of the Electric Department and the

power is to be brought across at 100 South as directed,
2. Install 100 South improvements as directed by the Engineering Department,
3. Meet all of the Construction and Development Standards,
4. Extend power and improvements through Spanish Fields as directed by the Engineering

Department,
5. Meet all conditions of Spanish Fields Plat A.
Mr. Baker seconded, and the motion passed unanimously.

Auto Zone Site Plan

Mr. Pierson said the Auto Zone building will be located at 750 North 800 East and the plan



meets the parking requirements.

Mr. Baker asked if the set back requirements will be met.

Mr. Pierson reviewed the set back requirements.  He said Doug Short has met with the applicants
and reviewed the requirements.

Mr. Oyler asked concerning the existing gated access on 700 North. 

Mr. Fakler said the 700 North access will continue to be gated if the city requires it.

Mr. Oyler said the gated access was originally required to protect the residents and the city wants
the access to remain gated.

Mr. Thompson said the plan will need to include a separate water meter.  There is an existing
separate pressurized irrigation box on the property.

Mr. Fakler said they will use the separate pressurized irrigation box and will install a separate
water meter.  He also said there are several easements on the property.

Mr. Thompson said the standards easements will also be required.

Mr. Baker said the existing easements were required from the past.

Mr. Oyler asked concerning the dedication of a public utility easement.

Mr. Thompson reviewed the standards and advised Mr. and Mrs. Fakler of the easement
requirements around the property. 

Mrs. Fakler said the easements are no problem as long as they do not need to move the building.

Mr. Foster suggested moving the utilities west on the property at this time if they intend to
expand the building to the west at any point in the future.

Mr. Thompson will work with Brian Bagley of LEI to get the easement recorded.

Mr. Foster said there will be a fee for rerouting the transformer and a separate hook up.  Also, a
service requirement form will need to be completed by the certified electrician who designed the
building.

Mr. Thompson said a one-inch conduit will need to be installed from the water and pressurized
irrigation meters to allow the meters to be read.

Mr. Pierson advised Mr. and Mrs. Fakler of a future preconstruction meeting with the City
Engineering Department and their builders.  During the meeting all of the requirements will be



discussed.

Mr. Foster made a motion to approve the Auto Zone Site Plan with the following conditions:
1. Provide easements around the site according to the Construction and Development

Standards,
2. Reroute the electrical power lines per the easements shown on the plat,
3. Meet meter connection standards,
4. Install a new water meter along 800 East,
5. Continue to gate the access on 700 North.
Mr. Thompson seconded and the motion passed unanimously.

Mr. Oyler requested the property owners remove the signs discussed.

Mr. Fakler agreed to remove the signs.

10:50 a.m. - Richard Nielson left the meeting. 

Conditional Use Permit

Mr. Pierson said the applicants, Chad and Brook McDonald, are requesting an accessory
apartment at 480 South 820 East.  The parking will be located in the rear of the property.

Mr. Oyler asked if the Planning Commission had a problem with the size of the apartment.

Mr. Pierson said the issue was concerning the area for the parking.  All requirements have been
met and the property owners are required to install a sight obscuring fence.

Mrs. McDonald said the rear of the property will be fenced and there will be a storage area to
separate the parking from the neighbor’s view.  There will also be a separate entrance to the
apartment.  Mrs. McDonald requested a gated access on the south side of the property to the
existing access roadway owned by the city.

Mr. Oyler said he does not have a problem with the access as long as it is understood the area
cannot be used for parking.

Mr. Baker asked concerning the surface of the access roadway.

Mrs. McDonald said the roadway is graveled.

Mr. Banks said he is concerned with one driveway from the access road on the south side of the
property.

Mr. Oyler said he understood the driveway onto 820 East would also remain.  He did not
understand Mrs. McDonald proposal was for only one driveway onto the access roadway.  This
may cause a burden for future property owners if the driveway needs to be relocated.



Mr. Baker said the south access can be provided, but the existing driveway will need to remain
providing another access to the property.

Mr. Oyler said Mrs. McDonald could approach the city council and request a permanent access to
the south.  If a permanent access is approved, the existing driveway could be removed.

Mr. Baker asked if there should be separate water and pressurized irrigation meters for the
apartment.

Mr. Pierson said one meter can be used as long as the property owner notifies the utility
department of the dual services on one meter and agrees to pay rates based on multi-family
usage.

Mrs. McDonald said she is unsure at this time if they will have one or two meters.

Mr. Pierson said she will need to pay impact fees for adding the unit.

Mr. Baker said when Mr. and Mrs. McDonald apply for a building permit they will need to pay
impact fees for multi-family rates at that time.  He approximated the fees to be $6,000.

Mr. Thompson said if the city council approves the permanent easement, the property owner will
be required to install curb and gutter on the south side of the property.

Mr. Pierson made a motion to approve the Conditional Use Permit for an accessory apartment at
480 South 820 East with the following findings and conditions:

FINDINGS
1. The use is consistent with the General Plan and the purpose of the zoning district,
2. The use will not be detrimental to the health, safety, and welfare of the existing residents,
3. Consideration has been given to the character of the surrounding properties,
4. The site is of adequate size for the proposed accessory apartment,
5. The set back requirements are being met,
6. The plan has adequate access to public streets,
7. Adequate conditions have been considered and incorporated into the conditional use

permit.

CONDITIONS
1. Register with the utility department for the added unit and pay the appropriate rates for

multi-family usage,
2. Pay any applicable impact fees,
3. Apply for a building permit for completed and future construction of the accessory

apartment,
4. Install a sight obscuring fence along the back of the property as directed,
5. Construct the access as shown unless otherwise approved by the city council.
Mr. Foster seconded and the motion passed unanimously.



General Plan Amendment

Mr. Pierson said the applicants, Kelly and April Porter, are requesting a General Plan amendment
at 8256 South Main Street.  They built their existing home at the rear of the property with the
prospect of a commercial development on the front of the property.  Mr. Pierson said the closest
existing commercial property is the Butler parcel.

Mr. Baker asked if there is a reason not to add another commercial zone in the area.

Mr. Oyler asked how far back the proposed commercial zoning would extend from Main Street. 

Mr. Pierson said there is an understanding with Salem City concerning the Woodland Hills Drive
alignment to the west of Main Street.  Salem City has requested to have the property to the south
of Woodland Hills Drive to be part of Salem City and the property to the north of Woodland
Hills Road would be annexed into Spanish Fork City.

Mr. Oyler said there may be concerns when the roadway splits properties.  

Mr. Pierson suggested the commercial property boundaries follow the contours of the area and
extend two hundred feet back from Main Street.

Mr. Baker said Woodland Hills Drive will be continued soon and the property will develop.

Mr. Oyler said the city will be looking at the entire area for rezoning.  He said the area Mr.
Pierson is proposing as commercial is a very large area.

11:23 a.m. - Chris Thompson left the meeting.

Mr. Oyler said a major issue such as this cannot be decided in thirty minutes.  The General Plan
was created under the direction of committees. 

Mr. Pierson said he can guarantee the committees would want the area to be zoned commercial.

Chief Rosenbaum said he sees no problems with the proposed commercial area but agrees there
should be shared accesses onto Main Street.  He also said the commercial zone should be wider
than 200 feet to allow adequate space for possible parking.

11:28 a.m. - Richard Nielson returned to the meeting.

Mr. Nielson said there should be a commercial corridor along Main Street.  He is unsure of the
width of the corridor. 

Mr. Baker concurred and said the corridor should be wider than 200 feet.

Mr. Banks concurred but was unsure of the width.



Mr. Foster said the commercial zone corridor should be at least 300 feet in width.

Mrs. Porter suggested a 400-foot width in the corridor.

Mr. Oyler said if the recommendation includes a corridor of 300 feet then the commercial zone
should follow the contours of the area.  He also asked if the General Plan for the area should
indicate dual zones.

Mr. Pierson said the General Plan should show the area as a General Commercial Zone.

Mr. Pierson made a motion to recommend to the Planning Commission the approval of the
General Plan Amendment as presented by the Porters from an R-R Zone to a Commercial Zone
of 400 feet east from Main Street and 400 feet west from Main Street and from the south edge of
the Spanish Fork General Plan Boundary to the old Cal Pack Road.
Mr. Nielson seconded and the motion passed unanimously.

11:35 a.m. - Emil Pierson and David Oyler left the meeting.

Hill\Hughes Rezone (River Cove)

Mr. Baker said the applicant, Westfield Development, is requesting to rezone the property
located at 975 South Del Monte Road from R-R to R-1-12.  The surrounding property is zoned
R-1-12, Industrial, and R-R.  The property is also within the Growth Boundary.

Mr. Nielson said only the rezone is being considered at this time and not the preliminary plat

This item was temporarily passed.

Quail Hollow Final Plat B

Mr. Nielson said this item was tabled from the May 11, 2004 Development Review Committee
meeting.  There were some issues of concern presented at the previous meeting.  He said one
concern was the bank stabilization report.  Mr.  Nielson said the bank stabilization report has
been received and was prepared by Bruce Hall as a licensed engineer.

Mr. Oyler asked Mr. Nielson if he is comfortable with the report.

Mr. Nielson said the report is comparable to the Spanish Fields document and he is comfortable
with the report.  Also, the signed final plat has been located.

Mr. Smiley said they are removing the lots along the river from the flood plain.  

Mr. Baker asked Mr. Smiley what will be done with the property in the flood plain.

Mr. Smiley said the property in the development and in the flood plain will be given to the city.



Mr. Baker said the property should be dedicated to the city as open space.

Mr. Foster asked if the electric infrastructure could be located in the open space.

Mr. Nielson confirmed.

Mr. Baker asked if the preliminary title report has been reviewed.

Mr. Smiley said the preliminary title report has been presented for the whole property.

11:40 a.m. - Mr. Pierson returned to the meeting.

Mr. Pierson said the money for the vehicle bridge is required in whatever phase the Development
Review Committee dictates.

Mr. Smiley requested to delay the bridge to plat E.  He said plat E will follow  in approximately
30 days.  The traffic study shows their share of the vehicle bridge cost will be 6 percent.  The
pedestrian bridge will cost approximately $40,000 to $50,000.  He said they are willing to bond
for the bridge with this phase if the city requires it.

Mr. Oyler said the developer should be required to post the bond for the bridge when the cost of
the bridge is determined.

Mr. Oyler made a motion to approve the Quail Hollow Final Plat B with the following
conditions, based on the fact all queries regarding the plat have been met:
1. The cash payment and/or bond for the vehicle bridge are to be posted when costs for the

bridge have been determined,
2. Complete all of the previous conditions set, 
3. Dedicate the portion of the area in the flood plain to the city as open space.
Mr. Pierson seconded and the motion passed unanimously.

11:52 a.m. - Recess

Quail Hollow Final Plat C - An Amendment of Lots 1-12 Plat A

Mr. Pierson said the developer is requesting to amend Plat C to eliminate twin home lots and
replace with single family home lots. 

Mr. Nielson reviewed the utility redesign.  

Mr. Broadhead asked for improvements on Arrowhead Trail Road.

Mr. Smiley said they agreed to install the improvements this summer unless the city requested
the improvements earlier.



Mr. Nielson said there needs to be curb, gutter, and sidewalk along Arrowhead Trail Road and
Del Monte Road adjacent to Plat A.

Mr. Broadhead asked concerning the pressurized irrigation line along Del Monte Road.

Mr. Oyler said clearly on the plat it indicates no pressurized irrigation line is needed.

Mr. Smiley asked if the pressurized irrigation line is really needed.

Mr. Oyler said now in retrospect it has been determined the pressurized irrigation line will be
needed, however, he does not think the requirement can be made at this time.

Mr. Baker said this is a new final plat.

Mr. Oyler said it is not a new final plat for the lots already done.  At this point either the
developer of the adjacent property will install the line when the property develops or the city will
need to install the line if it is needed before the development.

Mr. Smiley said if the line is needed prior to the development of the adjacent property then the
city can contact Mr. Smiley.  The option is left open at this time.

Mr. Baker made a motion to approve the Quail Hollow Plat C Amendment with the following
conditions:
1. The plat is to be reduced from twelve lots to six lots
2. Receive approval of the utility redesign from the Engineering Department,
3. Install improvements along Arrowhead Trail Road and Del Monte Road adjacent to lots

one, two and three.
4. Follow any conditions previously imposed.

Mr. Smiley said Kent Jex is anxious to obtain a building permit.

Mr. Oyler reviewed the original proposal.  Kent Jex can pull a building permit when the
improvements are in and the plat is recorded.  He asked if Mr. Smiley could install curb, gutter,
and sidewalk along the entire portion of the property at Arrowhead Trail Road with a drive thru
for the existing home.

Mr. Baker asked why we are requiring the improvements now and not when the plat was
approved.  No answer was given.

Mr. Baker amended his motion to approve the Quail Hollow Plat C Amendment with the
following conditions:
1. The plat is to be reduced from twelve lots to six lots
2. Adjust the utility infrastructure as per the Engineering Department,
3. Install the improvements along Arrowhead Trail Road and Del Monte Road at such time

as the Engineering Department determines it is needed,



4. Follow any conditions previously imposed.
Mr. Foster seconded and the motion passed with a majority vote. Mr. Pierson was opposed to
the motion.

Hill\Hughes Rezone (River Cove) 

Mr. Pierson recalled the Hill\Hughes Rezone request.  The property is currently zoned R-R and
the applicant is requesting to rezone the property to R-1-12.  The area has been removed from the
flood plain.

Mr. Baker made a motion to approve the Hill\Hughes Rezone from an R-R Zone to an R-1-12
Zone with the following findings:
1. The property has been removed from the flood plain
2. The R-1-12 zone meets the density requirements of the General Plan with a density range

of 2.5 to 3.5 units per acre,
3. The property meetings the characteristics of the neighborhood in that the property to the

northwest is zoned R-1-12, the property to the northeast is the Recreation Complex, the
property to the east  is zoned R-1-12, the property to the southwest is zoned Industrial,
and the properties to the extreme north and west are zoned R-R,

4. The property is within the Growth Boundary.
Mr. Foster seconded and the motion passed unanimously.

Other Business

None

Adjournment

Mr. Foster made a motion to adjourn.  Mr. Nielson seconded, the motion passed unanimously,
and the meeting adjourned at 12:45 p.m.


